

Document No. E-INSWD

Third Edition, 2023

© Design-Build Institute of America Washington, D.C.





Design-Build Institute of America - Contract Documents LICENSE AGREEMENT

By using the DBIA Contract Documents, you agree to and are bound by the terms of this License Agreement.

- 1. License. The Design-Build Institute of America ("DBIA") provides DBIA Contract Documents and licenses their use worldwide. You acknowledge that DBIA Contract Documents are protected by the copyright laws of the United States. You have a limited nonexclusive license to: (a) Use DBIA Contract Documents on any number of machines owned, leased or rented by your company or organization; (b) Use DBIA Contract Documents in printed form for bona fide contract purposes; and (c) Copy DBIA Contract Documents into any machine-readable or printed form for backup or modification purposes in support of your permitted use.
- 2. User Responsibility. You assume sole responsibility for the selection of specific documents or portions thereof to achieve your intended results, and for the installation, use, and results obtained from the DBIA Contract Documents. You acknowledge that you understand that the text of the DBIA Contract Documents has important legal consequences and that consultation with an attorney is recommended with respect to use or modification of the text. You will not represent that any of the contract documents you generate from DBIA Contract Documents are DBIA documents unless (a) the document text is used without alteration or (b) all additions and changes to, and deletions from, the text are clearly shown.
- 3. Copies. You may not use, copy, modify, or transfer DBIA Contract Documents, or any copy, modification or merged portion, in whole or in part, except as expressly provided for in this license. Reproduction of DBIA Contract Documents in printed or machine-readable format for resale or educational purposes is expressly prohibited. You will reproduce and include DBIA's copyright notice on any printed or machine-readable copy, modification, or portion merged into another document or program.
- **4. Transfers.** You may not transfer possession of any copy, modification or merged portion of DBIA Contract Documents to another party, except that a party with whom you are contracting may receive and use such transferred material solely for purposes of its contract with you. You may not sublicense, assign, or transfer this license except as expressly provided in this Agreement, and any attempt to do so is void.
- **5. Term.** The license is effective for one year from the date of purchase. DBIA may elect to terminate it earlier, by written notice to you, if you fail to comply with any term or condition of this Agreement.
- 6. Limited Warranty. DBIA warrants the electronic files or other media by which DBIA Contract Documents are furnished to be free from defects in materials and workmanship under normal use during the Term. There is no other warranty of any kind, expressed or implied, including, but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. Some states do not allow the exclusion of implied warranties, so the above exclusion may not apply to you. This warranty gives you specific legal rights and you may also have other rights which vary from state to state. DBIA does not warrant that the DBIA Contract Documents will meet your requirements or that the operation of DBIA Contract Documents will be uninterrupted or error free.
- 7. Limitations of Remedies. DBIA's entire liability and your exclusive remedy shall be: the replacement of any document not meeting DBIA's "Limited Warranty" which is returned to DBIA with a copy of your receipt, or at DBIA's election, your money will be refunded. In no event will DBIA be liable to you for any damages, including any lost profits, lost savings or other incidental or consequential damages arising out of the use or inability to use DBIA Contract Documents even if DBIA has been advised of the possibility of such damages, or for any claim by any other party. Some states do not allow the limitation or exclusion of liability for incidental or consequential damages, so the above limitation or exclusion may not apply to you.
- 8. Acknowledgment. You acknowledge that you have read this agreement, understand it and agree to be bound by its terms and conditions and that it will be governed by the laws of the District of Columbia. You further agree that it is the complete and exclusive statement of your agreement with DBIA which supersedes any proposal or prior agreement, oral or written, and any other communications between the parties relating to the subject matter of this agreement.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXHIBIT	PAGE
Design-Builder's Insurance Requirements	1
Owner's Insurance Requirements	6
Design Consultant's Insurance Requirements	9
Design-Build Subcontractor's Insurance Requirements	13
Consul Contractorio and Contractorio Bouri	
General Contractor's and Subcontractor's Insurance Requi	iremenis17



Insurance Exhibit Design-Builder's Insurance Requirements

(The Parties should consult their insurance advisors prior to completing this Exhibit)

1.1 Insurance Types and Limits.

1.1.1 Design-Builder shall purchase and maintain insurance of the types, with the limits required, containing such endorsements and subject to such terms and conditions as follows, as well as Article 5 of DBIA Document No. 535, *Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder* (2022 Edition):

Type of Insurance [Insert Rating of Carrier]	Limits Required Per Claim/Occurrence	Limits Required Aggregate Policy Limits
1. Worker's Compensation	Statutory Limits	Statutory Limits
2. Employer's Liability (Bodily Injury by Accident)	\$	\$
a. By Disease	\$	\$
b. Each Accident	\$	\$
c. Each Employee	\$	\$
3. Commercial General Liability	\$	\$
a. Bodily Injury/Property Damage per occurrence limit	\$	n/a
b. Bodily Injury/Property Damage aggregate limit	n/a	\$
c. Products/Completed Operation aggregate limit	n/a	\$
d. Personal and Advertising Injury aggregate limit	n/a	\$
e. Medical Expense limit (any one person)	\$	\$
4. Contractor's Protective Liability (if applicable)	\$	\$
5. Commercial Automobile Liability	\$	\$

Type of Insurance [Insert Rating of Carrier]	Limits Required Per Claim/Occurrence	Limits Required Aggregate Policy Limits
6. Professional Errors and Omissions pursuant to Section 1.1.3(A) and 1.1.3(B) below (per claim/aggregate) providing coverage for professional services performed under the Agreement	\$	\$
7. Contractor's Pollution Liability including coverage for microbial matter (if applicable)	\$	\$
8. Umbrella/Excess Liability Insurance	\$	\$
9. Other Coverages required:	\$	\$

1.1.2 The insurance required by Section 1.1.1 shall be written for not less than the limits required in the table above or required by law, whichever coverage is greater. Coverages, whether written on an occurrence or claims-made basis, shall be maintained without interruption from date of commencement of the Work until date of Final Payment, unless noted below.

1.1.3

1.1.3(A) Professional Liability Insurance To Be Provided By Design Consultant. Such policies must provide coverage for the scope of professional services to be provided by or on behalf of Design Consultant. [Note: Design-Builder should obtain its own professional liability coverage.]

Select One

	The requirement for professional liability coverage on this Project shall be the
standar	d form practice policy provided by Design Consultant.
	The professional liability policy required pursuant to Section 1.1.3(A) above written on a Project specific basis and the policy premium shall be paid by

Design-Builder shall provide Owner with prior written notice of any cancellation or non-renewal of Design Consultant's practice policy and shall include in the Design Consultant Agreement a provision requiring Design Consultant to give Design-Builder 30 Days' written notice of any cancellation or non-renewal.

- **1.1.3(A).1** Faulty Work exclusion, limitation or restriction can only be applicable to the work self-performed by Design Consultant.
- **1.1.3(A).2** If any portion of the design or other professional service is to be performed by any person or entity other than Design Consultant then it is the responsibility of Design Consultant to require that such person or entity provide Design-Builder and Design Consultant with evidence of insurance to comport with this Exhibit.
- **1.1.3(B)** Professional Liability Insurance To Be Provided By Design-Builder. Such policies must provide coverage for the scope of professional services to be provided by or on behalf of Design-Builder.

Select One

☐The requirement	nt for professiona	al liability	coverage	on this	Project	shall	be	the
standard form prac	ctice policy provid	ed by De	sign-Build	er.				

The professional liability policy required pursuant to Section 1.1.3(B) above shall be written on a Project specific basis and the policy premium shall be paid by Owner.

Design-Builder shall provide Owner with prior written notice of any cancellation or non-renewal of Design-Builder's practice policy.

- **1.1.3(B).1** Faulty Work exclusion, limitation or restriction can only be applicable to the work self-performed by Design-Builder.
- **1.1.3(B).2** If any portion of the design or other professional service is to be performed by any person or entity other than Design-Builder then it is the responsibility of Design-Builder to require that person or entity provide Design-Builder with evidence of insurance to comport with this Exhibit.
- **1.1.4** Any coverage required to be maintained after Final Payment shall be identified below. (List here any coverages required to be maintained after Final Payment is made.)

2.1 Coverage Parameters and Endorsements.

- **2.1.1** Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be written on an occurrence basis, utilizing standard ISO unmodified coverage form (latest edition) or equivalent. Endorsements excluding, restricting or limiting coverage may be acceptable under certain circumstances provided the same are agreed upon by Owner and Design-Builder.
- **2.1.2** General Liability, Automobile Liability, Worker's Compensation/Employer's Liability and Umbrella/Excess Liability policies shall each include the following endorsements:
 - 2.1.2.1 Unintentional Errors and Omissions Endorsement
 - 2.1.2.2 Notice of Occurrence Endorsement
 - 2.1.2.3 Knowledge of Occurrence Endorsement
- **2.1.3** Commercial Automobile Liability coverage shall be provided by standard ISO Commercial Automobile Policy covering all Owned, Non-Owned and Hired Vehicles.
- **2.1.4** Umbrella/Excess Liability must schedule Commercial General Liability, Automobile Liability and Employer's Liability as underlying policies. The Umbrella/Excess Liability policies shall be written in accordance with the scheduled underlying policies and must be as broad as the underlying policies.
- **2.1.5** Contractor's Pollution Liability shall either be written on an occurrence or claims-made basis. If written on a claims-made basis, the policy must comport to Section 4.1.4.
 - **2.1.5.1** If applicable, the policy is to provide coverage for off-site transportation. When required, coverage is also to be provided for claims involving materials removed from the site and brought to non-owned off-site disposal, treatment and storage facilities.
 - **2.1.5.2** Any restriction, limitation or exclusion related to naturally occurring substances must be modified so as not to apply to microbial matter and the release of such naturally

occurring substances as a result of the performance of operations or materials/equipment brought to the site by Design-Builder.

3.1 Additional Insureds

- 3.1.1 Owner and Owner's officers, directors and employees shall be included as an additional insured on general liability, umbrella/excess and automobile liability policies of insurance required above of Design-Builder and its Subcontractors and Design Consultants. If required, as set forth above, Owner shall also be included as an additional insured on Design-Builder's Contractor's Pollution Liability policy of insurance. No person shall be named as an additional insured on any professional liability or worker's compensation/employer's liability policies. Coverage granted to an additional insured shall be primary and that coverage independently carried by an additional insured shall not contribute. Design-Builder shall furnish to Owner a copy of all Certificates of Insurance showing Owner as additional insured as set forth above. Design-Builder shall require Subcontractors and Design Consultants of any tier to furnish such certificates, and upon request of the same will furnish them to Owner. Owner shall not be an additional insured on any other of Design-Builder's policies except for those which are specifically listed below: (List here any other policies for which Owner will be an additional insured, as well as other entities who are to be named an additional insured.)
- **3.1.2** Each of the policies designated in section **3.1.1** is to provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of those persons or entities included as additional insureds. A waiver of subrogation is also to be provided to such entities under Worker's Compensation/Employer's Liability policies, where allowed by law. List here any other coverages required to provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of those persons or entities included as additional insureds: (List here any other policies for which additional insureds will also be provided with a waiver of subrogation.)
- **3.1.3** Additional Insured coverage provided under the Commercial General Liability/Umbrella/Excess and, if applicable, Design-Builder's Contractor's Pollution Liability policies, shall cover both the premises/operations and completed operations hazards.

4.1 Terms and Effective Dates.

- **4.1.1** If the General Liability coverages are provided by a Commercial General Liability Policy on a claims-made basis, the policy date or retroactive date shall predate the Agreement.
- **4.1.2** If Contractor's Pollution Policy is made on a claims-made basis, the policy date or retroactive date shall predate the Agreement.
- **4.1.3** Professional Liability coverage shall be retroactive to the date that professional services first commenced.
- **4.1.4** All claims-made policies, including without limitation, Professional Liability coverage provided on a Project specific basis, must be maintained by Design-Builder for ____(___) years from Substantial Completion or shall include an extended reporting period of ____(___) years beyond the date for Substantial Completion of the Project, unless otherwise specified.
- **4.1.5** List here any coverage required to be maintained after Final Payment:





Insurance Exhibit Owner's Insurance Requirements

(The Parties should consult their insurance advisors prior to completing this Exhibit)

1.1 Insurance Types and Limits.

1.1.1 Owner shall purchase and maintain insurance of the types, with the limits required, containing such endorsements and subject to such terms and conditions as follows, as well as Article 5 of DBIA Document No. 535, *Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder* (2022 Edition):

Type of Insurance [Insert Rating of Carrier]	Limits Required Per Claim/Occurrence	Limits Required Aggregate Policy Limits
1. Worker's Compensation	Statutory Limits	Statutory Limits
2. Employer's Liability (Bodily Injury by Accident)	\$	\$
a. By Disease	\$	\$
b. Each Accident	\$	\$
c. Each Employee	\$	\$
3. Commercial General Liability	\$	\$
Bodily Injury/Property Damage per occurrence limit	\$	n/a
b. Bodily Injury/Property Damage aggregate limit	n/a	\$
c. Products/Completed Operation aggregate limit	n/a	\$
d. Personal and Advertising Injury aggregate limit	n/a	\$
e. Medical Expense limit (any one person)	\$	\$
4. Commercial Automobile Liability	\$	\$
5. Umbrella/Excess Liability Insurance	\$	\$

Type of Insurance [Insert Rating of Carrier]	Limits Required Per Claim/Occurrence	Limits Required Aggregate Policy Limits
6. Builder's Risk insurance provided pursuant to DBIA Document No. 535 Standard Form of General Conditions of Contract Between Owner and Design-Builder (2022 Edition)	\$	\$
7. Other Coverages required:	\$	\$

- **1.1.2** The insurance required by Section 1.1.1 shall be written for not less than limits required in the table above or required by law, whichever coverage is greater. Coverages, whether written on an occurrence or claims-made basis, shall be maintained without interruption from date of commencement of the Work until date of Final Payment, unless noted below.
- **1.1.3** In the event Owner is providing any design or other professional service (either in-house or through a separate person or entity contracted by Owner), Owner shall provide to Design-Builder evidence of professional liability coverage for that scope of work.

2.1 Coverage Parameters and Endorsements,

- **2.1.1** Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be written on an occurrence basis, utilizing standard ISO unmodified coverage form (latest edition) or equivalent. Endorsements excluding, restricting or limiting coverage may be acceptable under certain circumstances provided the same are agreed upon by Owner and Design-Builder.
- **2.1.2** General Liability, Automobile Liability, Worker's Compensation/Employer's Liability and Umbrella/Excess Liability policies shall each include the following endorsements:
 - 2.1.2.1 Unintentional Errors and Omissions Endorsement
 - 2.1.2.2 Notice of Occurrence Endorsement
 - **2.1.2.3** Knowledge of Occurrence Endorsement
- **2.1.3** Commercial Automobile Liability coverage shall be provided by standard ISO Commercial Automobile Policy covering all Owned, Non-Owned and Hired Vehicles.
- **2.1.4** Umbrella/Excess Liability must schedule Commercial General Liability, Automobile Liability and Employer's Liability as underlying policies. The Umbrella/Excess Liability policies shall be written in accordance with the scheduled underlying policies and must be as broad as underlying policies.

3.1 Additional Insureds.

3.1.1 Design-Builder and Design-Builder's officers, directors and employees and Subcontractors and Design Consultants of any tier shall be included as an additional insured on general liability, umbrella/excess liability and automobile liability policies of insurance of Owner. Any coverage granted to an additional insured shall be primary and that coverage independently carried by an additional insured shall not contribute. In addition, Design-Builder and Design-Builder's officers, directors and employees and Subcontractors and Design Consultants of any tier shall be included as an additional named insured on Owner's Builder's Risk insurance and such coverage shall be primary and insurance independently carried by such additional named insured shall not contribute. Owner shall furnish to Design-Builder a copy of all Certificates of Insurance showing the parties named as an additional insured as set forth above and a copy of Owner's Builder's Risk insurance. Design-Builder shall not be an additional insured on any other of Owner's policies except for those

which are specifically listed below: (List here any other policies for which Design-Builder will be an additional insured, as well as other entities who are to be named as an additional insured on any of the specified policies.)

3.1.2 Additional Insured coverage provided under the Commercial General Liability and Umbrella/Excess policies shall cover both the premises/operations and completed operations hazards. Each of the policies designated in section 3.1.1 is to provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of those persons or entities included as additional insureds. A waiver of subrogation is also to be provided to such entities under Worker's Compensation/Employer's Liability policies, where allowed by law.

4.1 Claims-Made Policies

4.1.1	All claims-m	nade policies r	nust	be mair	ntained by	Own	er for) ye	ears
from	Substantial	Completion	or	shall	include	an	extended	reporting	period	of
	() years b	peyor	nd the d	ate for Sub	stan	tial Completi	on of the Pr	oject, unl	ess
otherv	vise specified.									

4.1.2 Any coverage required to be maintained after Final Payment shall be identified below. (List here any coverages required to be maintained after Final Payment is made.)



Insurance Exhibit Design Consultant's Insurance Requirements

(The Parties should consult their insurance advisors prior to completing this Exhibit)

1.1 Insurance Types and Limits.

1.1.1 Design Consultant shall purchase and maintain insurance of the types, with the limits required, containing such endorsements and subject to such terms and conditions as follows, as well as Article 9 of DBIA Document No. 540, *Standard Form of Agreement Between Design-Builder and Design Consultant* (2022 Edition):

Type of Insurance [Insert Rating of Carrier]	Limits Required Per Claim/Occurrence	Limits Required Aggregate Policy Limits
1. Worker's Compensation	Statutory Limits	Statutory Limits
2. Employer's Liability (Bodily Injury by Accident)	\$	\$
a. By Disease	\$	\$
b . Each Accident	\$	\$
c. Each Employee	\$	\$
3. Commercial General Liability	\$	\$
Bodily Injury/Property Damage per occurrence limit	\$	n/a
b. Bodily Injury/Property Damage aggregate limit	n/a	\$
c. Products/Completed Operation aggregate limit	n/a	\$
d. Personal and Advertising Injury aggregate limit.	n/a	\$
e. Medical Expense limit (any one person)	\$	\$
4. Commercial Automobile Liability	\$	\$

Type of Insurance [Insert Rating of Carrier]	Limits Required Per Claim/Occurrence	Limits Required Aggregate Policy Limits
5. Professional Errors and Omissions	\$	\$
6. Umbrella/Excess Liability Insurance	\$	\$
7. Contractor's Pollution Liability including coverage for microbial matter (if applicable)	\$	\$
8. Other Coverages required:		

- **1.1.2** The insurance required by Section 1.1.1 shall be written for not less than limits required in the table above or required by law, whichever coverage is greater. Coverages, whether written on an occurrence or claims-made basis, shall be maintained without interruption from date of commencement of the Work until date of Final Payment. If relevant, the above limits may be met in combination with applicable follow-form Umbrella Excess Liability Insurance limits.
- **1.1.3** For those policies containing an aggregate, as soon as incurred loss activity (paid plus reserve) depletes the aggregate by 50% or more, written notice must be sent to Design-Builder via fax and email.

1.1.4 Professional Liability.

Select One.

	e requirement for professional liability coverage on this Project shall be the
standard fo	rm practice policy provided by Design Consultant and Design Sub-Consultant.
_	e professional liability policy shall be written on a Project specific basis.
Such policie	es must provide coverage for the scope of professional services to be provided
	nalf of Design Consultant under their Agreements and any subsequent addenda
	sign Consultant shall provide Design-Builder with a minimum of 30 Days' prior
written notic	ce of any cancellation or non-renewal.

- **1.1.4.1** Faulty Work exclusion, limitation or restriction can only be applicable to the work self-performed by Design Consultant.
- **1.1.4.2** If any portion of the design or other professional service is to be performed by any person or entity other than Design Consultant then it is the responsibility of Design Consultant to require that such person or entity provide Design-Builder and Owner with evidence of insurance to comport with this Exhibit.
- **1.1.5** If Design Consultant's scope, even if performed by a lower tier Subconsultant/Subcontractor, includes pollution liability exposures, including but not limited to geotechnical engineering, subsurface utility engineering, drilling, environmental, materials testing or sampling/identification of hazardous materials, Design Consultant must include Pollution Liability coverage. This coverage can be satisfied if provided in combination with Professional Liability or may be satisfied under separate policy.

2.1 Coverage Parameters and Endorsements.

2.1.1 Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be written on an occurrence basis, utilizing standard ISO unmodified coverage form (latest edition) or equivalent. Endorsements excluding, restricting or limiting coverage may be acceptable under certain circumstances provided that it is agreed to by Design-Builder.

- **2.1.2** General Liability, Automobile Liability, Worker's Compensation/Employer's Liability and Umbrella/Excess Liability policies shall each include the following endorsements:
 - 2.1.2.1 Unintentional Errors and Omissions Endorsement
 - **2.1.2.2** Notice of Occurrence Endorsement
 - 2.1.2.3 Knowledge of Occurrence Endorsement
- **2.1.3** Commercial Automobile Liability coverage shall be provided by standard ISO Commercial Automobile Policy covering all Owned, Non-Owned and Hired Vehicles.
- **2.1.4** Umbrella/Excess Liability must schedule Commercial General Liability, Automobile Liability and Employer's Liability as underlying policies. The Umbrella/Excess Liability policies shall be written in accordance with the scheduled underlying policies and must be as broad as the underlying policies.
- **2.1.5** If applicable, Contractor's Pollution Liability shall be required. It can be written on an occurrence or claims-made basis. If written on a claims-made basis, the policy must comport to Section 4.1.4 below.
- **2.1.5.1** The policy is to provide coverage for off-site transportation. When required, coverage is also to be provided for claims involving materials removed from the site and brought to non-owned off-site disposal, treatment and storage facilities.
- **2.1.5.2** Any restriction, limitation or exclusion related to naturally occurring substances must be modified so as not to apply to microbial matter and the release of such naturally occurring substances as a result of the performance of operations or materials/equipment brought to the site by Design Consultant.

3.1 Additional Insureds.

- **3.1.1** Design-Builder, Owner and their respective parent entities, and officers, directors, members, and employees shall be included as an additional insured on general liability, umbrella/excess and automobile liability policies of insurance of Design Consultant and its Design Sub-Consultants at any tier. Design-Builder is not an additional insured under any professional liability or worker's compensation/employer's liability policies. Coverage granted to an Additional Insured shall be primary and that coverage independently carried by an Additional Insured shall not contribute. (List here any others who are to be named an additional insured.)
- **3.1.2.** Each of the policies designated in section 3.1.1 is to provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of those persons or entities included as additional insureds. A waiver of subrogation is also to be provided to such entities under Worker's Compensation/Employer's Liability policies, where allowed by law. List here any other coverages required to provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of those persons or entities included as additional insureds: (List here any other policies for which additional insureds will also be provided with a waiver of subrogation.)

4.1 Terms and Effective Dates.

4.1.1 If the General Liability coverages are provided by a Commercial General Liability Policy on a claims-made basis, the policy date or retroactive date shall predate the Agreement.

- **4.1.2** If Contractor's Pollution Policy is made on a claims-made basis, the policy date or retroactive date shall predate the Agreement.
- **4.1.3** Professional Liability coverage shall be retroactive to the date that professional services first commenced.

4.1.4	All claims-made policies, including without limitation Professional Liability coverage
provide	d on a Project specific basis, must be maintained by Design Consultant for
() years from Substantial Completion of the Project or shall include an extended reporting
period o	f () years beyond the date for Substantial Completion of the Project,
unless o	otherwise specified.

4.1.5 List here any coverage required to be maintained after Final Payment:



Insurance Exhibit Design-Build Subcontractor's Insurance Requirements

(The Parties should consult their insurance advisors prior to completing this Exhibit)

1.1 Insurance Types and Limits.

1.1.1 Design-Build Subcontractor shall purchase and maintain insurance of the types, with the limits required, containing such endorsements and subject to such terms and conditions as follows, as well as Article 10 of DBIA Document No. 560, *Standard Form of Agreement Between Design-Builder and Design-Build Subcontractor – Cost Plus Fee with an Option for a Guaranteed Maximum Price* (2022 Edition) or DBIA Document No. 565, *Standard Form of Agreement Between Design-Builder and Design-Build Subcontractor – Lump Sum* (2022 Edition):

Type of Insurance [Insert Rating of Carrier]	Limits Required Per Claim/Occurrence	Limits Required Aggregate Policy Limits
1. Worker's Compensation	Statutory Limits	Statutory Limits
2. Employer's Liability (Bodily Injury by Accident)	\$	\$
a. By Disease	\$	\$
b. Each Accident	\$	\$
c. Each Employee	\$	\$
3. Commercial General Liability	\$	\$
a. Bodily Injury/Property Damage per occurrence limit	\$	n/a
b. Bodily Injury/Property Damage aggregate limit	n/a	\$
c. Products/Completed Operation aggregate limit	n/a	\$
d. Personal and Advertising Injury aggregate Limit	n/a	\$

Type of Insurance [Insert Rating of Carrier]	Limits Required Per Claim/Occurrence	Limits Required Aggregate Policy Limits
e. Medical Expense limit (any one person)	\$	\$
4. Commercial Automobile Liability	\$	\$
5. Professional Errors and Omissions pursuant to section ☐ 1.1.4(A) or ☐ 1.1.4(B) below providing coverage for professional services performed under the Agreement	\$	\$
6. Umbrella/Excess Liability Insurance	\$	\$
7. Contractor's Pollution Liability, including coverage for microbial matter (if applicable)	\$	\$
8. Other Coverages required:	\$	\$

- **1.1.2** The insurance required by Section 1.1.1 shall be written for not less than limits required in the table above or required by law, whichever coverage is greater. Coverages, whether written on an occurrence or claims-made basis, shall be maintained without interruption from date of commencement of the Work until date of Final Payment, unless noted below.
- **1.1.3** For those policies containing an aggregate, as soon as incurred loss activity (paid plus reserve) depletes the aggregate by 50% or more, written notice must be sent to Design-Builder via fax and email.

1.1.4 IDENTIFY IN ITEM 5 OF THE ABOVE-REFERENCED INSURANCE MATRIX WHETHER 1.1.4(A) or 1.1.4(B) IS TO APPLY

1.1.4(A) Professional Liability Insurance Is To Be Provided By Design-Build Subcontractor's Design Consultant. Such policies must provide coverage for the negligent performance of professional services to be provided by or on behalf of Design-Build Subcontractor's Design Consultant. [Note: Even if this coverage part is selected, Design-Build Subcontractor should obtain its own professional liability coverage.]

Select One

standard form practice policy provided by Design-Build Subcontractor's Design Consultant.
☐ The professional liability policy required pursuant to Section 1.1.4(A) above shall be written on a Project specific basis.
Design Consultant must provide Design-Builder and Design-Build Subcontractor

with a minimum of 30 Days' prior written notice of any cancellation or non-renewal.

- **1.1.4(A).1** Faulty Work exclusion, limitation or restriction can only be applicable to the work self-performed by Design Consultant.
- 1.1.4(A).2 If any portion of the design or other professional service is to be performed by any person or entity other than Design-Build Subcontractor's Design Consultant

then it is the responsibility of such Design Consultant to require that such person or entity provide Design-Builder and Design-Build Subcontractor with evidence of insurance to comport with this Exhibit.

1.1.4(B) Professional Liability Insurance Is To Be Provided By Design-Build Subcontractor. Such policies must provide coverage for the scope of professional services to be provided by or on behalf of Design-Build Subcontractor.

Select One:

The requirement for professional liability coverage on this Project shall be the
standard form practice policy provided by Design-Build Subcontractor. Design-Build
Subcontractor shall provide Design-Builder with 30 Days' prior written notice of any cancellation or non-renewal of Design-Build Subcontractor's practice policy.
The professional liability policy required pursuant to Section 1.1.5(B) above
shall be written on a Project specific basis.

- **1.1.4(B).1** Faulty Work exclusion, limitation or restriction can only be applicable to the work self-performed by Design-Build Subcontractor.
- **1.1.4(B).2** If any portion of the design or other professional service is to be performed by any person or entity other than Design-Build Subcontractor, then it is the responsibility of Design-Build Subcontractor to require that such person or entity provide Design-Build Subcontractor and Design-Builder with evidence of insurance to comport with this Exhibit.

2.1 Coverage Parameters and Endorsements.

- **2.1.1** Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be written on an occurrence basis, utilizing standard ISO unmodified coverage form (latest edition) or equivalent. Endorsements excluding, restricting or limiting coverage may be acceptable under certain circumstances provided that it is agreed to by Design-Builder.
- **2.1.2** General Liability, Automobile Liability, Worker's Compensation/Employer's Liability and Umbrella/Excess Liability policies shall each include the following endorsements:
 - 2.1.2.1 Unintentional Errors and Omissions Endorsement
 - 2.1.2.2 Notice of Occurrence Endorsement
 - 2.1.2.3 Knowledge of Occurrence Endorsement
- **2.1.3** Commercial Automobile Liability coverage shall be provided by standard ISO Commercial Automobile Policy covering all Owned, Non-Owned and Hired Vehicles.
- **2.1.4** Umbrella/Excess Liability must schedule Commercial General Liability, Automobile Liability and Employer's Liability as underlying policies. The Umbrella/Excess Liability policies shall be written in accordance with the scheduled underlying policies and must be as broad as the underlying policies.

- **2.1.5** If applicable, Contractor's Pollution Liability shall be required. It can be written on an occurrence or claims-made basis. If written on a claims-made basis, the policy must comport to Section 4.1.4 below.
 - **2.1.5.1** The policy is to provide coverage for off-site transportation. When required, coverage is also to be provided for claims involving materials removed from the site and brought to non-owned off-site disposal, treatment and storage facilities.
 - **2.1.5.2** Any restriction, limitation or exclusion related to naturally occurring substances must be modified so as not to apply to microbial matter and to the release of such naturally occurring substances as a result of the performance of operations or materials/equipment brought to the site by Design-Build Subcontractor.

3.1 Additional Insureds

- **3.1.1** Design-Builder, Owner and their respective parent entities, and officers, directors, members and employees shall be included as an additional insured on general liability, contractor's pollution liability, umbrella/excess and automobile liability policies of insurance required above of Design-Build Subcontractor and its Design Consultants, and Sub-Subcontractors at any tier. No person shall be named as an additional insured on any professional liability or worker's compensation/employer's liability policies. Coverage granted to an additional insured shall be primary and coverage independently carried by an additional insured shall not contribute. (List here any others who are to be named an additional insured.)
- **3.1.2** Each of the policies designated in section 3.1.1 is to provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of those persons or entities included as additional insureds. A waiver of subrogation is also to be provided to such entities under worker's compensation/employer's liability policies, where allowed by law. List here any other coverages required to provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of those persons or entities included as additional insureds: (List here any other policies for which additional insureds will also be provided with a waiver of subrogation.)

4.1 Terms and Effective Dates.

- **4.1.1** If the General Liability coverages are provided by a Commercial General Liability Policy on a claims-made basis, the policy date or retroactive date shall predate the Agreement.
- **4.1.2** If the Contractor's Pollution Policy is made on a claims-made basis, the policy date or retroactive date shall predate the Agreement.
- **4.1.3** Professional Liability coverage shall be retroactive to the date that professional services first commenced.
- **4.1.4** All claims-made policies, including without limitation, Professional Liability coverage provided on a Project specific basis, must be maintained by Design-Build Subcontractor for _____ (_____) years from Substantial Completion, or shall include an extended reporting period of _____ (____) years beyond the date for Substantial Completion of the Project, unless otherwise specified.
- **4.1.5** List here any coverage required to be maintained after Final Payment:



Insurance Exhibit General Contractor's and Subcontractor's Insurance Requirements

(The Parties should consult their insurance advisors prior to completing this Exhibit)

1.1 Insurance Types and Limits.

1.1.1 General Contractor and Subcontractor shall purchase and maintain insurance of the types, with limits of liability, containing such endorsements and subject to such terms and conditions as follows, as well as set forth in DBIA Document No. 550, Standard Form of Agreement Between Design-Builder and General Contractor – Cost Plus Fee with an Option for a Guaranteed Maximum Price (2022 Edition), DBIA Document No. 555, Standard Form of Agreement Between Design-Builder and General Contractor – Lump Sum (2022 Edition), and DBIA Document No. 570, Standard Form of Agreement Between Design-Builder and Subcontractor (Where Subcontractor Does Not Provide Design Services) (2022 Edition):

Type of Insurance [Insert Rating of Carrier]	Limits Required Per Claim/Occurrence	Limits Required Aggregate Policy Limits
1. Worker's Compensation	Statutory Limits	Statutory Limits
Employer's Liability (Bodily Injury by Accident)	\$	\$
a. By Disease	\$	\$
b. Each Accident	\$	\$
c. Each Employee	\$	\$
3. Commercial General Liability	\$	\$
Bodily Injury/Property Damage per occurrence limit	\$	n/a
b. Bodily Injury/Property Damage aggregate limit	n/a	\$

Type of Insurance [Insert Rating of Carrier]	Limits Required Per Claim/Occurrence	Limits Required Aggregate Policy Limits
c. Products/Completed Operation aggregate limit	n/a	\$
d. Personal and Advertising Injury aggregate limit	n/a	\$
e. Medical Expense limit (any one person)	\$	\$
4. Commercial Automobile Liability	\$	\$
Professional Errors and Omissions (if applicable)	\$	\$
Contractor's Pollution Liability, including coverage for microbial matter (if applicable)	\$	\$
7. Umbrella/Excess Liability Insurance	\$	\$
8. Other Coverages required:	\$	\$

- **1.1.2** The insurance required by Section 1.1 shall be written for not less than the limits required in the table above or required by law, whichever coverage is greater. Coverages, whether written on an occurrence or claims-made basis, shall be maintained without interruption from date of commencement of the Work until date of Final Payment.
- **1.1.3** For those policies containing an aggregate, as soon as incurred loss activity (paid plus reserve) depletes the aggregate by 50% or more, written notice must be sent to Design-Builder via fax and email.
- **1.1.4 Professional Liability.** Such policy must provide coverage for construction management services and other professional services provided by or on behalf of General Contractor and Subcontractor.

NOT APPLICABLE APPLICABLE
If applicable, select one:
The requirement for professional liability coverage on this Project shall be the standard form practice policy provided by General Contractor and Subcontractor.
The professional liability policy required pursuant to Section 1.1.4 above shall be written on a project specific basis.
Such policies must provide coverage for the scope of professional services to be provided

Such policies must provide coverage for the scope of professional services to be provided by or on behalf of General Contractor and Subcontractor under their Agreements and any subsequent addenda thereto. General Contractor and Subcontractor shall provide Design-Builder with a minimum of 30 Days' prior written notice of any cancellation or non-renewal.

- **1.1.4.1** Faulty Work Exclusion, limitation or restriction can only be applicable to the work self-performed by General Contractor/Subcontractor.
- **1.1.4.2** If any portion of the design or other professional service is to be performed by any person or entity other than General Contractor/Subcontractor then it is the responsibility of General Contractor/Subcontractor to require that such person or entity provide Design-

Builder and General Contractor/Subcontractor with evidence of insurance to comport with this Exhibit.

2.1 Coverage Parameters and Endorsements.

- **2.1.1** Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be written on an occurrence basis, utilizing standard ISO unmodified coverage form (latest edition) or equivalent. Endorsements excluding, restricting or limiting coverage may be acceptable under certain circumstances provided that it is agreed to by Design-Builder.
- **2.1.2** General Liability, Automobile Liability, Worker's Compensation/Employer's Liability and Umbrella/Excess Liability policies shall each include the following endorsements:
 - 2.1.2.1 Unintentional Errors and Omissions Endorsement
 - 2.1.2.2 Notice of Occurrence Endorsement
 - 2.1.2.3 Knowledge of Occurrence Endorsement
- **2.1.3** Commercial Automobile Liability coverage shall be provided by standard ISO Commercial Automobile Policy covering all Owned, Non-Owned and Hired Vehicles.
- **2.1.4** Umbrella/Excess Liability must schedule Commercial General Liability, Automobile Liability and Employer's Liability as underlying policies. The Umbrella/Excess Liability policies shall be written in accordance with the scheduled underlying policies and must be as broad as the underlying policies.
- **2.1.5** If General Contractor's and Subcontractor's Pollution Liability shall be required, it can be written on an occurrence or claims-made basis. If written on a claims-made basis, the policy must comport to Section 4.1.4.
 - **2.1.5.1** If applicable, the policy is to provide coverage for off-site transportation. When required, coverage is also to be provided for claims involving materials removed from the site and brought to non-owned off-site disposal, treatment and storage facilities.
 - **2.1.5.2** Any restriction, limitation or exclusion related to naturally occurring substances must be modified so as not to apply to microbial matter and to the release of such naturally occurring substances as a result of the performance of operations or materials/equipment brought to the site by General Contractor/Subcontractor.

3.1 Additional Insureds.

3.1.1 Design-Builder, Owner and their respective parent entities, and officers, directors, members and employees shall be included as an additional insured on general liability, umbrella/excess, contractor's pollution liability and automobile liability policies of insurance of the General Contractor and Subcontractor and its Sub-Subcontractors at any tier. No person shall be named as an additional insured on any professional liability or worker's compensation/employer's liability policies. Coverage granted to an additional insured shall be primary and coverage independently carried by an additional insured shall not contribute. (*List here any others who are to be named an additional insured*)

3.1.2 Each of the Policies designated in Section 3.1.1 is to provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of those persons or entities included as additional insureds. A waiver of subrogation is also to be provided to such persons or entities under worker's compensation/employer's liability policies, where allowed by law. List here any other coverages required to provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of those persons or entities included as additional insureds: (List here any other policies for which additional insureds will be also be provided with a waiver of subrogation.)

4.1 Terms and Effective Dates.

- **4.1.1** If the General Liability coverages are provided by a Commercial General Liability Policy on a claims-made basis, the policy date or retroactive date shall predate the Agreement.
- **4.1.2** If Contractor's Pollution Policy is made on a claims-made basis, the policy date or retroactive date shall predate the Agreement.
- **4.1.3** If required, Professional Liability coverage shall be retroactive to the date that professional services first commenced.
- **4.1.4** All claims-made policies, including without limitation, Professional Liability coverage provided on a Project specific basis, must be maintained by General Contractor and Subcontractor for _____ (____) years from Substantial Completion, or shall include an extended reporting period of _____) years beyond the date for Substantial Completion of the Project, unless otherwise specified.
- **4.1.4** List here any coverage required to be maintained after Final Payment:

The license for use of this document expires 1 year from the date of purchase.

To renew your license, visit store.dbia.org.

Questions? We're here to help.

Contact us



Design-Build Institute of America 1001 Pennsylvania Ave. NW, Suite 410

Washington, DC 20004

(202) 682-0110 dbia@dbia.org